# Franklin Family Researchers Hnited Volume 17 January 1996



Standing Left to right: Morton Colfax Bird, Thomas Vernon Bird,

Elisha Henry Bird and Ira Walker Bird

Seated Left to right: Mary Messic Bird Bennett,

(the mother) Mary Catherine Franklin Bird

and Minnesota "Minnie" Bird Turner

(Photo taken about October 1900)

# Franklin Family Researchers United Volume 17 January 1996

#### 2nd Edition, re-paginated by Ben Franklin, 19 Feb 1999

Please note: This issue was SCANNED. There are probably some errors due to this: zeroes where the letter "O" should be, lower case "L" for 1, etc. Typos found in the first edition are marked with "[sic]"

#### **About the Cover**

(Submitted by Mildred B. Ridgeway, 5260 Ridgevale Waye, Fair Oaks, CA 95628-3615)

Mary Catherine Franklin was born 16 Jan 1844 Gallatin County, KY to William Thomas Franklin and Sarah (Benham) Franklin.

She most likely spent her formative years in Gallatin County which, at the time, was a sparsely populated rural farming area. According to the 1850 Federal Census, the family moved to Kenton Co., KY where she lived with her parents until she married.

Mary Catherine Franklin married Elisha Hudson Bird, Feb 1867 at the age of 23 years. Elisha, now 39 years old, was a widower having been married before to another Franklin, Mary Catherine's Aunt, Mary Messic Franklin. Mary Messic Franklin and Elisha Hudson Bird had eight children before she died 22 Aug 1866 in Kenton Co., KY. An infant son, Charles Sherman Bird died 19 days after the death of his mother.

Six months after his first wife died Elisha Hudson Bird married Mary Catherine Franklin. Probably Mary Catherine and Elisha Hudson were married in Kenton Co., KY. However, by the time of the 1870 Federal Census, they had moved to Trimble County, KY where they were to remain the rest of their married life.

Undoubtedly, from the very onset of her married life, she had her hands full with her new family. The oldest child was a 15 year old boy while the youngest child was a 3 year old girl. Between the oldest and youngest were five more to care for, whose ages were 13, 11, 9, 7 and 6 years - all boys.

By the 15 December 1867, Mary Catherine gave birth to her first child, Robert Seymour Bird. She would bear nine children of her own before her family was completed.

Elisha Hudson Bird was a farmer, owning his own farmland in Trimble County. He and Mary Catherine lived and worked the farm as did their neighbors, as Trimble County was an agrarian area. Later, about 1890, Elisha sold much of his property to his "older" children.

The photo of Mary Catherine with six of her children, was probably taken October of 1900 when Mary Catherine was 56 years old. There is a similar photograph taken at this time of Elisha Hudson Bird and his boys by Mary Messic Franklin Bird. Three of her children had died by 1900.

Elisha Hudson Bird died 18 November 1900 shortly after this photo was taken. Mary Catherine had to handle the remaining farmland by herself, most assuredly with the help of the older sons.

By 1908 Elisha Henry Bird had married Minnie Ann Thomas from southern Kentucky,

and moved to Indianapolis, Indiana. Mary Catherine, by now having no minor children, went to live with Elisha Henry and spent her remaining years in Indiana very active in Church work and, according to her obituaries, beloved by all.

Mrs. Mary Catherine Bird, the daughter of Mr. & Mrs. Wm. Franklin, departed this life February 4, 1923. Born Gallatin County, Kentucky, January 16, 1844, she was reared in Kentucky and spent her entire life in Kentucky and Indiana. She was married in the month of February, 1867. To this union nine children were born. Three have preceded her to their future home. She was also bereaved of her husband in 1900.

Mrs. Bird became a Christian many years ago, uniting with the Methodist Church. In 1921 she transferred her membership to the North Side Na\_\_\_\_ Church and to this church and her God she was ever faithful until called to her reward, having completed her mission and finished the course. Mrs. Bird had been a sufferer from asthma for several years. This disease, with a stroke of apoplexy hastened her death.

Mrs. Bird was very much loved by those who knew her, and was held in the highest esteem in the church and was the oldest member in the church. She leaves to mourn her loss four sons Marton C., Thomas V., Henry E., of Indianapolis and Ira Walker of Denver, Colorado; two daughters Mary Bennett of Denver, Colorado and Minnie B. Hill of Indianapolis; also eight grandchildren and one great-grandchild, with a host of friends.



(Note by Virgil Henry Bird (1975) father of Henryette Altonia Bird Mahon writes: "She died in our house on W. 35th St., in Indianapolis, Indiana, having lived with us for sometime prior to the stroke. I was 9 years old and remember her quite well. She was deeply religious and very active for her age. Although Kentuckians, most of the Birds migrated to Indianapolis. Here, she spent her later years mostly with her children moving about them from time to time."

# **Table of Contents**

About the Cover	2
Table of Contents	4
Editors Message	5
Membership List	6
Edward T. Franklin & Charlotte (Dean) Franklin	9
Revolutionary War Soldiers in Kentucky	11
History of the Orphan Brigade	11
Second Census of Kentucky 1800	11
Jackson W "John" Franklin & Pamelia A. Owens	12
James Franklin, Sr.	14
Volunteer U.S. Soldiers Military Records 1784-1811	16
Abel Franklin	17
Abel Franklin Bible	18
Stacy and Winifred (Wood) Franklin	20
R. W. Lewis and Millie (Stone) Franklin	23
Queries	31
Correspondence	32
Name Index	33
Place Index	37

## **Editors Message**

This issue of FFRU marks the beginning of our 5th year. Hard to believe that the years have flown by so quickly. Little did Johnnye Carlson and I know that our little venture would rack up two first place wins at the Texas State Genealogical Society Conference; held in Austin, Texas each year. In 1992 we were awarded First Place in the "Family Publications" category; in 1993 our Pedigree Publication received a third place certificate for the "Reference Book" category; and in 1994 we took the first place position in the "Family Publications" category for the second time. Unfortunately 1995 was a little too hectic to submit an entry.

All of the credit goes to you, our members. Because without you and your stickability, there would not be FFRU. Thanks again to all of you and I hope that 1996 remains to be our best yet!

With the receipt of your October issue (Volume 16) you also received your renewal form. Normally the Charter Member's form is stamped with "Charter Member \$16.00". Once again I errored[sic] in not stamping this form. The oversight was not intentional. Our charter members are very special to us and we have not intentionally tried to penalize them. I will refund the difference or apply it to next year's membership renewal. Just let me know which you prefer.

You will note that with this Issue we have included an index for the Andrea Papers. There are three more inserts to complete the collection and the index will alert you as to what is coming. We are also compiling an Index for the first five years of FFRU. If anyone has any suggestions as to how this Index would work best, let me know.

FFRU has recently purchased "The Virginia Genealogist" Volumes 1-20, with comprehensive index on CD. A wonderful resource. Other new CD additions to our FFRU Library are "Territorial Vital Records: 1800-1906; Utah Territory, AZ, CO, ID, NV, WY, Indian Terr. and "Volunteer U.S. Soldiers Military Records 1784-1811". The Franklin data extracted will be shared with all of you. If you have other surnames that you would like extracted, let us know. Focus reports are free to members ... these are our records and you should have access to them.

Vol 18 will feature the family of John & Lucy Franklin submitted by Bev Petersen, 16305 Chandler Blvd., Mishawaka, IN 46544. Bev has been such an active part of our organization and the pictures submitted are superb. FFRU would like to thank Bev for her participation with the following challenge. "In the background of the <u>cover picture hangs</u> a photo on the wall. Anyone who can identify this picture, with reasonable documentation and to Bev's satisfaction, will receive a free 1 year subscription to Franklin Family Researchers United." So get ready .... let's identify this man!!

# **Membership List**

( \* = charter member)

Name	Add	ress
Howard Andrews #075	PO Box 1153	Farmington, NM 87499- 1153
Acquisitions Section, State Historical Society	816 State Street	Madison, WI 53706-1482
Beverly A. Bagwill #126	5539 Hazelbrook	Lakewood, CA 90712
Audrey E. Beaty *046	7104 Barnsdale Way	Austin, TX 78745-5513
Reta L Blystone *066	PO Box 0453	Brea, CA 92622-0453
Wayne H Bonner *047	15619 Orgram Ave	Gardena, CA 90249-4445
Martha F Booher *041	1443 Potomac Ave	Lafayette, IN 47905-1949
Evelyn Bowie #090	7206 Versailles	Amarillo, TX 79121
Agnes L Brooks *064	5210 Powell	Kansas City, KS 66106-1648
Patsey D. (Franklin) Brown #161	1830 Dove Tail Lane	Shingle Springs, CA 95682
Barbara E Budde *027	10445 Eaglewood Ave	St Louis, MO 63114-2238
Nancy A. Burkard #133	8395 Stahley Road	E. Amherst, NY 14051
Lottie (Burnett) Horn #077	PO Box 37	Dighton, KS 67839
W.M. Caddell, Jr #110	6914 Mistletoe Drive	Dallas, TX 75223
Candace S. Campise #122	6000 Reims, Unit No. 4301	Houston, TX 77036-3056
Faye Carroll #101	1608 Hogle Drive	Bowling Green, KY 42101
Janet Cook #093	521 Mission Ridge	Desoto, TX 75115-5233
Janis Coppock #140	2428 E. Evergreen	Mesa, AZ 85213
Rosa Lee Crow *50	4523 US Hwy 18OW	Snyder, TX 79549-9711
Elaine M Daum *034	500 Maria Drive	Petaluma, CA 94954-1566
Cynthia Drake #106	11121 Saunders Court	San Diego, CA 92131
Eva Cherry Eason *049	2014 16th Ave North	Texas City, TX 77590-5336
A Ross Eckler *043	Spring Valley Road	Morristown, NJ 07960
Maurine Ellison, Jr *065	Rt 1, Box 134F	Aspermont, TX 79502-9506
Barbara Eyers #095	980 Danvers Ave	Westerville, OH 43081-1114
John R Farrell # 115	7541 So Meadow Lark Ave	Tucson, AZ 85746
Benjamin A. Franklin #072	3621 SW Windsor Ct.	Topeka, KS 66004-2563
Benjamin J. Franklin #157	5847 Sandstone Drive	Durham, NC 27713
Bill Franklin *067	2101 Kimberly	Arlington, TX 76010-4761
Carolyn S Franklin *057	9408 Windrow Place	Pascagoula, MS 39581-8824
Cecil L Franklin #085	2250 E Columbia Place	Denver, CO 80210
Claude C. Franklin *029	2107 Trailwood Circle	Kerrville, TX 78028

### Name Address

		· · · ·
CH MAJ Danny R. Franklin *018	4003 Tallwood	Killeen, TX 76542
Dolores Franklin *035	Rt 1, Box 45-1	Porter, OK 74454-9801
Donald H Franklin *002	2114 N Louise Street	Santa Ana, CA 92706-3445
Ethel Franklin *003	16003 Co Rd #4065A	Kemp, TX 75143-9755
Mrs Frances N Franklin *053	Rt 1, Box 62	Goshen, AL 36035-9615
Ira C Franklin *020	7 111 Skyline Trail	Pell City, AL 35125
J Donald Franklin *021	18 Entrada East	Irvine, CA 92720
Janice H. Franklin #162	RR 6, Box 348	Cynthiana, KY 41031
M. McCoy Franklin #128	2300 Shady Wood Drive	Tupelo, MS 38801
Michael J. Franklin #132	719 Thomas Street	Janesville, WI 53545
Norman R. Franklin #138	PO Box 132	Kermit, TX 79745
Philip Franklin #130	2129 Hartford	St Paul, MN 55116
Rex Franklin *038	Box 117	Vergennes, IL 62994-0117
W.D. Franklin #017	Box 2972	Texas City, TX 77592
Stephen F Gillaspie #089	113 S. 16th St.	Mayfield, KY 42066
Sharon B. Garber *070	15210 Gamecock Road	Midlothian, VA 23113
Miss Edna Groetken *048	1525 Court Street	Sioux City, IO 51105-1524
Carl A. Hannah *005	65133 E. 250 Road	Grove, OK 74344-8700
Roberta Hawk #156	6048 Chandler Drive	Baton Rouge, LA 70808
Marjorie Herlitz #142	4403 BeishawRoad	Lowell, Indiana 46356
Patricia M. Hilty #078	Box 185	Geneva, NE 68361-0185
Gerald L Hodson *042	962 Eva Lane	Upland, IN 46989-9731
Belvia 1. Holloway #102	4000 Iberia-Bucirus Rd. E.	Caledonia, OH 43314-9744
Patrick J Horan #108	1421 Park Street	White Bear Lake, MN 55 110
Kathryn F Jennings #097	16861 North Stoneridge Court	Fountain Hills, AZ 85268- 1516
Marie J. Kendrick #141	2929 Old Wharf Road	Suffolk, VA 23435
LaVonne Ketchum *061	36 Tarn Circle	Oroville, CA 95966-3829
Charles Klute #147	3830 US-12 West	Buchanan, MI 49107
Dorothye K Knight *037	1604 S Bowie Street	Amarillo, TX 79102-2505
Kurth Memorial Library	101 Calder Square	Lufkin, TX 75901
Mary Sue Lauth *059	2213 Westmoor Road	Findlay, OH 45840-2843
Roy M McAlister *028	7536 Community Drive	Citrus Heights, CA 95610-4402
Gwen F McLelland *025	617 Richfield Drive	San Antonio, TX 78239- 2009
Mrs Harold E Miller #073	1684 Firth Road	Inverness, IL 60067

FFRU Vol 17 - Page 7 (2nd Edition)

Name	Addr	ess
Karen R Miller #084	5682 Whispering Pines	Stevensville, MI 49127
Susie Moncla *007	1513 22 NE Ave	Texas City, TX 77590-5240
Patsy J Morris *045	1013 Field Street	San Marcos, TX 78666-7003
Dan Nelson # 114	400 Fuller Wiser Rd #209	Euless, TX 76039
Mildred Claiborne Normans #146	1804 Westchester Drive	Knoxville, TN 37918-2847
Burnetta W. Ooley #145	(Winter) 9804 Bundella Drive	Las Vegas, NV 89134-7572
	(Summer) 1004 S. 193rd Place	Seattle, WA 98148-2214
Marlin H Parker *033	6301 Miller Wilson Road	Crosby, TX 77532-5818
Rose Mary Patterson *008	9001 E Chof Ovi Drive	Tuson, AZ 85749-9422
Gerald V Payne *009	PO Box 720070	Pinon Hills, CA 92372-0070
Beverly Petersen #091	16305 Chandler Blvd	Mishawaka, IN 46544
Doreen E Rawlings *062	3566 Fairfax Lane	Woodbury, MN 55125-9343
Janet L. Reynolds #155	#3 Chadwick	Wichita Falls, TX 76310- 2208
Mildred B Ridgeway *060	5260 Ridgevale Way	Fair Oaks, CA 95628-3615
Judy Wood Riley #152	5846 Mango Drive	St. Louis, MO 63129
Elizabeth Robinett #139	2001 Community Ln	Midland, TX 79701
L. David Roper #158	1001 Auburn Drive	Blacksburg, VA 24060
Maxine Shaw #127	PO Box 61	Olean, MO 65064
Tami Sherrill #1	196107 - 137th PI SW	Edmonds, WA 98026-3315
H.D. Smith #159	4708 Highway 25N	Hodges, SC 29653-9667
Merta V Squire *056	3732 Barry Avenue	Los Angeles, CA 90066- 3204
Jean Stark *040	13034 Rummel Creek	Houston, TX 77079-3729
Helen Starnes *044	Rt 1, Box 332	Oakwood, TX 75855-9671
Velma Stice #150	7364 Carmella Circle	Rancho Murieta, CA 95683
Sylvia L Sudduth *039	18321 S Normandie Avenue	Gardena, CA 90248-4002
Martha H Thompson *030	517 Dumbarton Drive	Shreveport, LA 71106-6809
Diana G. (Franklin) Turner #143	25615 Fernhill Drive	Los Altos Hills, CA 94024
Catherine F. Vandegrift #125	703 Brenda Ave c/o PO Box 2884	Auburn, AL 36831-2884

7418 Swanson Drive

7767 Capay Avenue

Richmond, TX 77469

Orland, CA 95963-9802

Gena Ayers Walls # 112

Wanda Zimmerman #082

### Edward T. Franklin & Charlotte (Dean) Franklin

(Submitted by Mildred B. Ridgeway, 5260 Ridgevale Way, Fair Oaks, CA 95628-3615. See Vol 1 pg 41)

Edward T Franklin (born 11 Oct 1780 - died 20 Sept 1846 in Gallatin Co., KY.) He married 29 Jan 1818 in Falmouth, Pendleton Co, KY, to Charlotte Dean (b 28 July 1793 - died 12 Nov 1846 Gallatin Co., KY), daughter of James Dean, who was born 28 Jul 1793. Their children:

- 1. William Thomas Franklin (born 2 May 1819 in Gallatin Co, KY died January 1901 probably in Covington, KY where he had lived for many years). William married (#1) 23 Dec 1840 in Gallatin Co, KY, BK 2, Sarah Benham, daughter of Jacob Benham. Sarah was born 20 Feb 1816 and died 10 Aug 1852 in Covington, KY. William married (#2) Gallatin Co., KY 11 Apr 1853, Margaret Ramy/Ramey who was born 20 Sep 1823. Margaret died 17 Feb 1889. There were no children from the second marriage. William & Sarah's children:
  - (1) James Edward Franklin (born 5 Mar 1842 in Gallatin Co, KY) married 27 Jul 1870, Julia A Bucksot who was born 12 Mar 1852. No children of this marriage in these records.
  - (2) Mary Catherine Franklin (born 16 Jan 1844 in Gallatin Co, KY died 4 Feb 1923 Indianapolis, Marion Co., Indiana buried Crown Hill Cemetery) married Feb 1867 to Elisha Hudson Bird, as his second wife. Elisha Hudson Bird was born 27 Apr 1828 in Campbell Co, KY. died 21 Nov 1900 in Milton, Trimble Co, KY and was buried in Monroe-Wise Cem, Trimble Co, KY. Elisha Hudson was also married to Mary Messic Franklin. Mary Catherine Franklin Bird & Elisha Hudson Bird's children were:
    - A. Robert Seymour Bird (b 15 Dec 1867 d 20 July 1892 buried Monroe-Wise Cemetery, Trimble Co., KY).
    - B. Morton Colfax Bird (b 28 July 1869 d 25 Oct 1939 Indianapolis, Indiana buried Crown Hill Cemetery) married Susan Kendall. No children.
    - C. Thomas Vernon Bird (b 12 Mar 1871 d 31 Dec 1944 Indianapolis, IN buried Crown Hill Cemetery) married Pearl Dutton.
    - D. Mary Messic Bird (b 19 Jun 1873) married Charles Bennett; moved to Denver, Colorado.
    - E. Minnesota "Minnie" Bird (b 26 Aug 1875 d 5 April 1954 Indianapolis, IN) married Turner Hill.
    - F. Oliver Roland Bird (b 10 Sept 1877 d Sept 1880 buried Monroe-Wise Cemetery, Trimble Co., KY.)
    - G. Ollie Bessie Bird (b 10 Mar 1880 d 29 Apr 1893 buried Monroe-Wise Cemetery, Trimble Co., KY.)
    - H. Elisha Henry Bird (b 5 Feb 1882 Trimble Co., KY d 21 Nov 1969 Miami, FLA buried Woodlawn Park Cemetery, Dade Co., FL) married 1908 Minnie Ann Thompson (b 11 Jan 1881 Cave City, Barren Co., KY. died 13 Nov 1943 Miami, Florida buried Woodlawn Park Cemetery.)
    - I. Ira Walker Bird (b 12 Aug 1884 Trimble Co., KY d 12 Nov 1948). Ira never married.
  - (3) Thomas A Franklin (b. 30 Sep 1845)

- (4) Benjamin Franklin (born 24 Oct 1850 in Kenton Co, KY died 6 Aug 1852 Covington, Kenton Co., KY).
- 2. Mary Messic Franklin (born 24 Jan 1830 in Gallatin Co, KY died 22 Aug 1866 Covington, Kenton Co., KY) married 26 Mar 1851 in Kenton Co, KY, Elisha Hudson Bird, as his first wife, (born 27 Apr 1828 in Campbell Co, KY died 21 Nov 1900 in Milton, Trimble Co, KY and was buried in Monroe-Wise Cem, Trimble Co, KY). Elisha Hudson was also married to Mary Catherine Franklin. Children to Elisha Hudson Bird and Mary Messic (Franklin) Bird are:
  - (1) Edward Franklin Bird (b 9 Feb 1852 Kenton Co., KY d 21 Oct 1900 Trimble Co., KY) married 27 Mar 1879 to Olive Mosser Trimble Co., KY. Both are buried Mt. Carmel Cemetery, Trimble Co., KY.
  - (2) Douglas Grant Bird (b 26 Feb 1854 d 10 Sep 1936 Indianapolis, Indiana) married 9 May 1876 to Julia ann Brinkworth in Trimble Co., KY.
  - (3) Gustavus Adolphus Bird (b 23 Nov 1855 Kenton Co., KY d 27 Mar 1937 Indianapolis, Indiana) married 4 Feb 1880 to Sarah Whaley in Trimble Co., KY.
  - (4) George William Bird (born 4 Jun 1858 in Kenton Co, KY. d 13 Feb 1942 Trimble Co., KY buried Mt. Carmel Cemetery, Trimble Co., KY) married #1 in 1883 to Ida Mosser (born 3 Aug 1864 in Allegheny Co, PA). George William Bird married #2 Margie Ellen Rand on 24 Nov 1904 in Madison, Jefferson Co., Indiana. George & Ida's Children:
    - A. Oscar William Bird, son of George William and Ida (Mosser) Bird, was born 24 Nov 1887 in Milton, Trimble Co, KY, and married 6 Mar 1916 in Milton, Trimble Co, KY, Nadine Gallagher who was born 6 Mar 1896 in Madison, IN. Oscar William died 16 Mar 1968 in Madison, IN. Nadine died 21 Feb 1926 in Milton, Trimble Co, KY. Their Children:
      - (A) Mildred Bird, daughter of Oscar William and Nadine (Gallagher) Bird, was born 8 Apr 1919 in Milton, Trimble Co, KY, and married 16 Nov 1942 in Long Beach, CA, Wilfred T Ridgway.
  - (5) John Monroe Bird (b 23 July 1860 Kenton Co., KY d 25 Dec 1912 Trimble Co., KY buried Mt. Carmel Cemetery, Trimble Co., KY) married #1 Emma Meek on 23 May 1889; #2 to Mabel Holsclaw 25 Feb 1896.
  - (6) James Dora Bird (b 17 Dec 1861 Kenton Co., KY d 10 Nov 1942 Jefferson Co., Indiana) married 2 Jan 1891 to Lou Ella Kendall.
  - (7) Juniata "Junie" Bird (b 17 Mar 1864 Kenton Co., KY d 21 July 1943 in Colorado) married 24 Feb 1885 to Paul L. Heim in Trimble Co., KY.
  - (8) Charles Sherman Bird (b 4 Mar 1866 Kenton Co., KY d 10 Sept 1866 Kenton Co., KY).

# **Revolutionary War Soldiers in Kentucky**

Name	County	Description
Franklin, Absalom	Christian Co.	Jan 11, 1834, age 70
Franklin, James M.	Shelby Co.	Private N.C. Line 1/9/1834, age 71
Franklin, John	Warren Co.	Virginia Line 12/18/1821, Died 4/4/1823
Franklin, Joseph	Bracker Co. [sic]	Virginia Line 3/18/1819, Died 12/30/1829
Franklin, Ruben	Clark Co.	Virginia Line 5/11/1833, 78 years old
Franklin, Stephen	Anderson Co.	N.C. Line 2/7/1834 - age 72

# **History of the Orphan Brigade**

**William W. Franklin,** Barren County, KY was transferred from Co. F, April 26, 1862. Was appointed corporal, 1862, and promoted to sergeant, 1863. Fought at Vicksburg, Baton Rouge, Stone River, Chickamauga, Rocky Face Ridge, Resaca, and Dallas; was wounded and permanently disabled at the latter place, and was afterward retired.

# **Second Census of Kentucky 1800**

Name	County	Date
Franklin, George	Clark Co	7/22/1800
Franklin, James	Barren Co	9/10/1800
Franklin, James	Harrison Co	1800
Franklin, John	Barren Co	1800
Franklin, John	Fleming Co	8/11/1800
Franklin, John	Warren Co	1800/01
Franklin, John, Jr.	Barren Co	9/10/1800
Franklin, John, Sr.	Barren Co	9/10/1800
Franklin, Stephen	Fayette Co	11/07/1800
Franklin, William	Cumberland	1799
Franklin, Zepheniah	Mason Co	1800

### Jackson W "John" Franklin & Pamelia A. Owens

(Records in FFRU Data Base, 736 Dogwood St., Jasper, TX 75951)

Jackson W "John" Franklin was born 1822/1825 in VA, and married about 1840/1841 in Bedford Co, VA, to Pamelia A Owens who was born about 1820/1825 in Lynchburg, VA. Pamelia A died 1Aug 1903 in Poor House, St Louis, MO and was buried in Oak Hill Cem, Kirkwood, MO. Sources for Jackson W "John" Franklin:

- (1) Franklin Fireplace Vol 1, pg 97; Mrs. Robert Williams, 410 Eight Street Terrace, Warrensburg, Missouri 64093): Marriage Records of Bedford Co., Va from "Encyclopedia of American Quaker Genealogy" by William Wade Hinshaw & Thomas Worth Marshall.
- (2) FF pg 719 1850 Wilson Co., TN census lists a Jackson Franklin b VA with wife Pemelia b VA. Their oldest child is 8 which would indicated that they married about 1841.
- (3) Query in The Virginia Genealogist 1988 from Mrs. Harold Edward Miller, 1684 Firth Rd., Inverness, ILL 60067. (4) Correspondence: Mrs. Harold Miller, 1684 Firth Rd., Inverness, IL 60067 (Feb 1992).

Children: (Birth Place: according to 1850 Wilson Co., TN Census)

- 1. Alexander Franklin, was born about 1842 in VA.
- 2. Benjamin Franklin, was born 1844 in VA.
- 3. Martha Franklin, was born about 1845 in VA. Family moved to Tenn ca 1847 and to MO bef 1860.
- 4. Henry Franklin, was born about 1846 in VA. Family moved to Tenn ca 1847 and to MO bef 1860.
- 5. Mary Harrington Franklin, was born about 1848 in Wilson Co, TN.
- 6. John W Franklin, was born about 1850 in Wilson Co, TN.
- 7. Robert Fulton Franklin, was born 13 May 1855 in Lebonon[sic], Wilson Co, TN, and married 24 Sep 1880 in St Louis, MO, to Sarah Elizabeth O'Haver[sic], daughter of Henry and Lutitia Rhonda (Barnett) O'Hare[sic], who was born 23 Jan 1860 in St Louis, MO. Robert Fulton died 24 May 1914 in St Louis, MO and was buried in Oak Hill Cem, Kirkwood, MO. Sarah Elizabeth died 12 Oct 1903 in St Louis, MO. Children:
  - (1) Frederick Hyde Franklin, was born 11 Jun 1881 in St Louis, MO, and married 2 Oct 1909, to Charlotte Tunell. Frederick Hyde died 1960.
  - (2) Letitia Rhoda Franklin, was born 2 Aug 1883 in St Louis, MO, and married Ernest Gassling. Letitia Rhoda died 4 Jul 1957.
- (3) Octavia Franklin, was born 27 Jan 1885 in St Louis, MO. Octavia died 5 Feb 1902. (4) Esther Francis[sic], was born 13 Jun 1887 in St Louis, MO, and married 4 Mar 1911, Charles B Stanley. One of Ester's siblings died at the age of six months and another was 17 when she died. The rest remained close until separated by death (between the ages of 74 and 85). Ester married Charles Stanley in 1911 and they were the parents of two daughters. Their eldest, Virginia, was born in 1916. She suffered with asthma all her life and died in 1941. After Charles died in 1944, Ester made her home with her daughter, Vivian (1919 1989) and her family. Essie was seldom at home. She was active in her church and bowled several times each week. She traveled a great deal to see the world and to visit friends and younger family members. Her brothers and sisters lived in St. Louis their entire lives.



At the age of 100 Essie bowled in the Senior Olympics. She was the oldest person ever to take part in the local games, which test the athletic prowess and stamina of people 55 and older. At the age of 103 she bowled 200. She stands a petite, but erect 5 ft and weighs about 130 lbs with her 8 pound lady's bowling ball.

Her daughter - Vivian Kearney says "Essie is very independent and doesn't like people to hold her arm..." she says, "suppose they fell and took me with them".

She celebrated her 108 birthday with a party, visits from her family and best wishes from the governor of Missouri. Willard Scott of "The Today Show" mentioned her bowling record and sent his birthday wishes on national TV.

Ester died Sunday, 8 Oct 1995 at the National HealthCare Center of Maryland Heights. She was survived by two granddaughters and three greatgrandsons.

- (5) Susan Srene Franklin, was born 17 Aug 1889 in St Louis, MO, and married 6 Jul 1926, Joseph Murphy. Susan Srene died 12 Dec 1973.
- (6) Mary Ellen Franklin, was born I Jul 1892 in St Louis, MO. Mary Ellen died 23 Jan 1893.
- (7) Adolph Jackson Franklin, was born 10 Dec 1893 in St Louis, MO, and married 9 Aug 1920, Geraldine Hayes. Adolph Jackson died 30 Mar 1973.
- (8) Ida Helen May Franklin, was born 10 Jul 1896 in St Louis, MO, and married 20 Aug 1917, David Ralph Wiber. Ida Helen May died 13 Nov 1972.
- (9) Georgenia Marian Franklin, was born 13 Jun 1899 in St Louis, MO, and married 23 Jul 1921, George Edward Miller. Georgenia Marian died 25 Aug 1977 in St Louis, MO.

Children:

- A. Harold E Miller
- 8. Sarah Franklin, was born about 1857 in MO.
- 9. Charles Franklin, was born 1859 in MO.

## James Franklin, Sr.

(Family Group Sheet Nolan Porter Olsen, 520 No. 6th East, Logan, Utah. Submitted Beverly Petersen, 16305 Chandler Blvd., Mishawaka, Indiana 46544. Sources: Vital Records of RI; Bates Collection; Mass. S 7, Vol 1., p.268; Old Families of amesbury; Probate of Will of Husband) Child:

- A. James Franklin, Jr., son of James Franklin, Sr., (born 8 Jul 1682 in Dartmouth, Bristol Co, Mass. died 25 Oct 1756 Scituate, Plymouth, Mass.) married 2 May 1705 to Martha Ormsby (born 7 May 1680 Rehoboth, Bristol, Mass), daughter of John Ormsby. Children:
  - (A) Phillip Franklin (born 25 Feb 1707 in Swansea, Bristol Co, Mass) married 31 Mar 1728 in Rehoboth, Mass. MARRIAGE: "Vital Records of Rehoboth 1642-1896", by J.N. Arnold p.140 (Mass) Phillip Franklin of Swanzey and Rachel Horton of Rehoboth, married by Rev. David Turner 31 Mar 1728. BIRTH, DEATH & MARRIAGE: American Gen Research Institute, Ft Wayne, IN "Patriots and Veterans", p 63 (submitted by Bev Petersen): states "Philip was a private in a Vermont unit; married to Rachel Horton." "Descendants of Philip Franklin of Scituate, RI and Guilford, VT" by Ralph M. Stoughton; Microfilm #0886777 at Salt Lake City, UT. Franklin Family Researchers United, Vol 11 pg 61.
  - (B) Lydia Franklin (born 26 Jul 1708 in Swansea, Bristol Co, Mass) married Mr. Rowland.
  - (C) James Franklin (born 16 Dec 1709 in Swanzea, Bristol Co, Mass).
  - (D) Gideon Franklin (born 10 Oct 1711 in Swansea, Bristol Co, Mass) married 18 Nov 1735, Mary Chaffee (born 15 June 1717 Reboboth, Bristol Co., Mass) daughter of David & Patience Chaffee. Children all born Reboboth, Bristol Co., MA:
    - 1. Daniel Franklin (b 25 June 1736)
    - 2. David Franklin (b 13 Apr 1738)
    - 3. Asa Franklin (b 28 Jan 1740)
    - 4. Molly Franklin (b 3 Oct 1741) Married Mr. Cole
    - 5. Hannah Franklin (b 29 July 1743)
    - 6. Gideon Franklin (b 25 Apr 1745) married Abigail Ross.
    - 7. Oliver Franklin (b 14 Dec 1748)
  - (E) Ichabod Franklin (born 1 Jul 1713 in Swansee, Mass) married 22 Nov 1735 to Easter or Hester Horton. Their children all born Attleboro, Bristol Co., MA with the exception of the first child who was born in Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA.
    - 1. Stephen Franklin (b 10 May 1736) married 5 Oct 1758 Attleboro, Bristol Co., MA to Rachel Carpenter (b 14 Jun 1741 Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA) daughter of Eleazer Carpenter & Elizabeth (Warfield) Carpenter. Their children:
      - (1) Esther Franklin (b 20 Feb 1762 Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA)
      - (2) Rachel Franklin (b 20 Feb 1762 Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA)
      - (3) John Franklin (b 27 Oct 1763 Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA)
      - (4) Stephen Franklin (b 9 July 1765 Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA) married Keziah (b about 1767 of Winchester, Cheshire Co., NH. Their Children all born in Winchester, Cheshire Co., NH with the exception of #c & #d born in Townsend, Windham Co., VT.

- a. Nathan Franklin (b 18 July 1785)
- b. Azubah Franklin (b 11 Aug 1787)
- c. David Franklin (b I Nov 1789)
- d. Sabra Franklin (b 29 Oct 1791)
- e. Mariam Franklin (b 16 May 1794)
- f. Keziah Franklin (b 11 Aug 1796)
- g. Simeon Franklin (b 17 Sept 1798)
- h. Rachel Franklin (b 24 May 1800)
- i. Eunice Franklin (b 19 Sept 1803)
- j. David Franklin (b 8 Oct 1805)
- k. Eunice Franklin (b 13 Apr 1808)
- 1. Susan Franklin (b 21 Sept 1814)
- (5) Chloe Franklin (b 10 Sept 1767 Rehoboth, Bristol Co., MA)
- (6) Thankful Franklin (b I Nov 1770 Winchester, Cheshire Co., NH)
- (7) Marh[sic] Franklin (b 14 Nov 1773 Winchester, Cheshire Co., NH)
- (8) Ebeneser Franklin (b 6 Mar 1775 Winchester, Cheshire Co., NH died 17 Oct 1841) married 7 Dec 1795 to Esther Hammond.
- 2. Ichabod Franklin (b 28 Apr 1739) married 22 Jan 1761 to Molly Whitman (b abt 1742 of Attleborough, Bristol Co., MA d 24 May 1778 Chelsea, Orange Co., VT. Their children all born Chelsea, Orange Co., VT.
  - (1) Daniel Franklin (b 11 Jan 1762)
  - (2) Ichabod Franklin (b 7 Aug 1764)
  - (3) Noah Franklin (b 16 July 1767)
  - (4) Abel Franklin (b 16 June 1770)
  - (5) Asabel Franklin (male b 2 June 1773)
  - (6) Sarah Franklin (b 7 Oct 1775)
  - (7) Molly Franklin (b 16 May 1778)
- 3. John Franklin (b 20 Aug 1740).
- 4. Hannah Franklin (b 5 Sept 1742)
- 5. Nathan Franklin (b 2 Feb 1744)
- 6. Easter Franklin (b 12 Mar 1748)
- 7. James Franklin (b I Feb 1750/51) christened 28 Mar 1751.
- (F) Elisha Franklin (born 8 Jan 1716 in Swansea, Bristol, Mass) married 26 Jan 1737 to Hannah Luther (b 25 Sept 1720 Swansea, Bristol Co., MA) daughter of Caleb Luther and Mary (Cole) Luther. Children all born Scituate, Plymouth Co., MA.
  - 1. Murbah Franklin (b 10 Feb 1739) married 15 Sept 1776 to John Howland.
  - 2. John Franklin (b 31 Aug 1742)
  - 3. Phoebe Franklin (b 25 Jan 1745) married 10 Nov 1763 to William Taylor.
  - 4. Nathan Franklin (b 5 July 1747)
  - 5. James Franklin (b 7 Mar 1751)
  - 6. Elisha Franklin (b 12 Apr 1753)
  - 7. Squire Franklin (b 5 Jun 1756) married 1791 to Ann Westcott.
  - 8. Hannah Franklin (b 8 Aug 1758) married 3 Dec 1779 to Samuel Howland.
  - 9. Samuel Franklin (b 28 Jun 1761)
- (G) Mary Franklin (born 10 Nov 1718 in Swansea, Bristol Co, Mass). Twin to Martha.

- (H) Martha Franklin (born 10 Nov 1718 in Swansea, Briston Co, Mass) married 8 Mar 1741/1742, David Aylesworth. Twin to Mary.
- (I) Uriah Franklin (born 19 Dec 1720 in Swansea, Bristol Co, Mass).
- (J) Abigail Franklin (born about 1722 of Swansea, Bristol Co., Mass) married Mr. Hands.
- (K) Sarah Franklin (born about 1724 of Swansea, Bristol Co, MA, and married Mr. Lee. --end--

## Volunteer U.S. Soldiers Military Records 1784-1811

CD in FFRU Library, 736 Dogwood St., Jasper, TX 75951. Taken from 9 rolls of microfilm of 21,000 soldiers who served from twenty-two states and territories of the United States from 1784 to 1811. The information include: name, state or territory, rank (any one of twenty-seven ranks), company, regiment and battalion to which they belonged. This information is an index to the compiled service records. The service records themselves may be obtained from the National Archives. The National Archives divides military records into the following categories: American Revolution, 1775-1783; Indian Wars, 1784-18 11; War of 1812-1815; Indian Wars 1816-1855; Mexican War 1846-1848; Civil War 1861-1865; Spanish American War 1898; and Poncho Villa Campaign 1914.

Name	Militia	Enter Rank	Exit Rank
Franklin, Claibourn	Kentucky	Private	Private
Franklin, James	Ohio Terr.	Private	Private
Franklin, Jesse	Virginia	Private	Private
Franklin, John	US Troops	Private	Private
Franklin, John	Ohio Terr.	Private	Private
Franklin, James	Kentucky	Corporal	Corporal
Franklin, John	Ohio Terr	Private	Private
Franklin, Martin	Kentucky	Private	Private
Franklin, Martin	Kentucky	Corporal	Corporal
Franklin, Miles			
Franklin, Peter			
Franklin, Robert	Virginia	Private	Private
Franklin, William			
Franklin, Zachariah			

<sup>1. &</sup>quot;Military Records Other than for the Civil War", Robert S. Davis, Jr.; published "Heritage Quest", Issue #60, Nov/Dec 1995.

### **Abel Franklin**

(New England Historical and Genealogical Register, Vol. 105, pp 254-256, "Notes on Eighteenth Century Block Island".

Abel Franklin was a prominent inhabitant of Jamestown. He was the first keeper of the Beavertail Light and owned the North and South ferries on the west side of Connecticut Island, which ran to South County.

He was frequently a member of the Jamestown Town Council. In 1731 her purchased land at the Island (New Shoreham Deeds, Book 3 pg. 70).

He married Sarah Remington daughter of Stephen and Penelope Remington, who is buried in the Franklin Burying Lot in South Kingston. She died 10 Dec 1778 in her 91st year. Her husband is buried in Jamestown. He died testate in 1758, "aged 68 years".

Abel Franklin is apparently the Abel Franklin, who was born at Dartmouth, Mass. 18 May 1690, the son of James Franklin who was a townsman at Dartmouth in 1686<sup>2</sup>. James had been a soldier in Phillip's War. On 24 Aug 1676 he had served under Capt. Daniel Henchman<sup>3</sup>. On 24 Aug 1676 he was in Capt. Thomas Brattle's Company<sup>4</sup>. On 9 Dec 1675 he was one of Capt. Samuel Moseley's volunteer troopers and was present at the Great Swamp Fright later in that month<sup>5</sup>. On 24 Aug 1676 his pay was assigned at Braintree, Mass. This would indicate that at that date he was probably a resident of that town<sup>6</sup>. He was evidently a young man at the time of the war. James was living in Rhode Island in October 1693, when he bought land in Dartmouth. In 1706 he was of Swansey. In 1710 he was styled "Cordwainer" and was "of Rehoboth", but by 1716 he had returned to Swansey. His wife was named Elizabeth<sup>7</sup> [See FFRU Vol 11, pg 60] His son James Franklin, Jr. removed from Swansey to Scituate, Rhode Island where he died testate on 21 Oct 1756. It seems probable that the elder James Franklin was a brother of John Franklin of Swansey, cordwainer, who with his wife Ruth, sold land there in 1717, and James Franklin was a witness<sup>8</sup>. (Source: "Short History of the West Ferries of Jamestown", by Susan Braley Franklin, Ph.D., Bull. Jamestown Hist. Soc., June 1941; information supplied by Susan Braley Franklin.) [Other sources for this family: FFRU Vol 4 pg 27; October 1992] Abel Franklin's three sons:

I. Stephen Franklin (b 1715) married at New Shoreham on the Island, coming from Jamestown, RI 30 Oct 1743 to Margaret Mitchell, daughter of Capt. Thomas Mitchell, Jr. of New Shoreham and Boston. She was baptized in the Brattle Street Church in Boston on 12 March 1727/1728.

Stephen resided for some time at the Island, where he had the following children. He eventually returned to Jamestown where his wife Margaret died 14 Aug 1765 in her 39th year. She is buried in the Franklin Burial Lot on the hill in South Kingston above the

<sup>2.&</sup>quot; The Register", Vol 22 p 67; Savage's Gen. Dic., Vol II pg. 200.

<sup>3.&</sup>quot;Bodge's Soldiers of Phillip's War", pg 58.

<sup>4.</sup>ibid p.264

<sup>5.</sup>ibid , pg.477

<sup>6.</sup>ibid pg. 368

<sup>7.</sup>Bristol County Deeds, Taunton

<sup>8.</sup>Bristol County Deeds, Taunton, Book 10, pg 527

Jamestown Ferry.

- 1. Thomas Franklin (born 1744 died 5 June 1767 aged 16 years 11 months). He was buried with his mother.)
- 2. Abel Franklin (born 1746). The following information was published in FFRU Vol 8 pg 9; October 1993. It is being repeated here for the sake of those who may be researching this line and do not have access to our publication.

(The following was sent to us by Bev Petersen, 16305 Chandler Blvd., Mishawaka, Indiana 46544). New England Historical & Gen Register, pg 285 "Bible Records".

The following records were copied by photostat, from old Bibles found in a second-hand book shop in Madison, Wis., about 1946. When the shop was closed a year or so later the Bibles themselves disappeared, along with thousands of old books - probably sold as waste paper. The photostat copies of these records are now in the Society's collection of manuscripts.

### **Abel Franklin Bible**

The Abel Franklin whose family record is given below was probably the son of Stephen and Margaret (Mitchell) Franklin, born in New Shoreham, RI. (see the vital records of New Shoreham as published in James N December 24, 1995 Arnold, Vital Records of Rhode Island, Vol 4, pt. iv., p. 27, where his birth is given as 19 April 1746. Something of his ancestry may be found in The Register, Vol. 82, p. 463, October 1928, and Vol. 86, p. 74, January 1932. Note that the name is spelled with the final "g" through the record.

#### **Births**

Abel Frankling born April 18th 1746

Anna Burrows Frankling born Febry 9th 1751.

Abel and Anna Burrows Frankling was married January 5th AD. 1769.

Maynard Frankling born May 10th AD. 1770.

Nathan Frankling born August 23d. 1771.

Elisabeth Rathburn Frankling born December 28th 1773.

Nancy Frankling born February 22th 1776.

These are the names of the children of Abel and Anna L Frankling.

David Lewis and Anna Burrows Lewis was married December 15th AD. 1785.

David Lewis born July 12th AD. 1786.

Sally Lewis born April 8th AD. 1788.

John Lewis born November 17th AD. 1789.

Mary Lewis born August 30th AD. 1791.

Abel Frankling Lewis born October 7th 1793.

And these are the names of the children of David and Anna Lewis.

#### **Deaths**

Polly Lewis died May 23rd 1813.

David Lewis Jun died November 9th 1815.

David Lewis died January 20th 1816.

FFRU Vol 17 - Page 18 (2nd Edition)

Anna Lewis died November 19th 1827.

Nancy Bennet died February 16th 1857.

Abel Franklin Lewis died Jan 20th 1858.

Sally Lewis Birdick died August 2d 1875.

Esther Lewis died March 10th 1873.

#### **Potter Births**

Cyrus Q Potter May 3rd 1825

Agnes M Annas October 7th 1838

Luther A Potter Novr 1st 1857

Arthur E Potter June 24th 1861

Edson (originally written Eddison) E Potter June 7th 1863

Loren (originally written Aloren) D Potter December 20th 1865

Cyrus E Potter April 8th 1870

Charles E Potter April 10th 1872

Agnes Lura Potter February 25th 1874

Ellswoth S Potter October 2d 1875

Burtie Potter March 28th 1878

Melvin (middle initial illegible) Potter June 23th 1882

(end of FFRU Vol 8 pg 9)

- 3. Stephen Franklin, Jr. (born 1747- died in East Greenwich, where his will was proved 21 Feb 1817)
- 4. George Franklin (born 1752
- 5. Hannah Franklin (born 1754)
- II. Abel Franklin, Jr. (b 1710) married 14 Oct 1741 on the Island, coming from Jamestown, RI. to Lydia Littlefield daughter of the second Caleb Littlefield. They lived at the Island and on 23 Dec 1760 her father, Caleb Littlefield deeded her land there (New Shoreham Deeds, Book 3, pg 554). Abel and Lydia had seven children all born at the Island. Their descendants long resided at the Island.
  - 1. Sarah Franklin (born 1744)
  - 2. John Franklin (born 1746)
  - 3. Caleb Franklin (born 1750)
  - 4. Penelope Franklin (born 1/53)
  - 5. Phoebe Franklin (born 1760)
  - 6. Marcy Franklin (born 1764)
  - 7. Frederick Franklin (born 1766)
- III. John Franklin (b 1727) married at Jamestown, RI. 29 Aug 1750 to Elizabeth Mitchell sister of Margaret and the daughter of Capt. Thomas Mitchell, Jr. She was baptized at the Brattle Street Church on 19 Sept 1731. Elizabeth Mitchell died 25 May 1768 in her 38th year.

On 5 May 1753 John Franklin was of Newport and was styled "Mariner" (The Register, Vol 82 pg 463).

John succeeded his father as proprietor of the West Ferry at Jamestown. His descendants lived in Newport, among whom were the late Judge Robert Maynard Franklin and Miss Susan Braley Franklin, Ph.D., a distinguished educator.

FFRU Vol 17 - Page 19 (2nd Edition)

John and Elizabeth had seven children. According to gravestones in the Franklin Burial Lot in South Kingston; their children were:

- 1. Peter Franklin
- 2. Ann Franklin
- 3. Sarah Franklin
- 4. Mary Franklin
- 5. Frances Franklin
- 6. William Franklin
- 7. Robert Franklin

### Stacy and Winifred (Wood) Franklin

The following was submitted by Dan Nelson, 14686 Hiddenspring Circle, Chino Hills, CA 91709 (1993). Extracts from a letter received July 28, 1931, from Mrs. Byfield Walker (Sarah Elmira Lephiew, granddaughter of Ethelbert Sexton Franklin, and great-granddaughter of Thomas Baker Franklin. See "The Andrea Papers".

"My great-grandfather, whose name I believe was Stacy and his wife, Winifred Wood, came from Carolina in an ox wagon; they came to Farmervile[sic], Louisiana, for a short period and then to Bradley County in Arkansas, settling on a creek and they called it Franklin Creek to this day - 2 1/2 miles from Warren.

Great grandfather Franklin had five sons and one daughter by his wife Winifred Wood. As I recall their names were Ethelbert Sexton, Alfred, William., Thomas., Ike and the daughter's name Winifred Wood. There were two sons by a second marriage Benjamin and Washington.

When Grand Pa was 12 years old (that would be in 1817, as he was born in 1805 according to 1850 census of Bradley Co., Arkansas, J.H.P.) they came to Arkansas and that was a long time ago. The logs of that first house were still standing when I was there. Dr. Cabeen, Aunt Winifred's husband, came from the same place in Carolina, also Hamptons and Meeks. Of course, you know the place. The Franklins were English Welsh. It is in the past, when I read in the Gazette I think it was concerning those who came over on Mayflower, and they gave the name of J. C. Franklin. If I could go to Warren, maybe I could get some information from courthouse. I don't think the Martins knew their mother was a Franklin. Dr. Martin got his best help from Franklins.

This is what I find in the old Bible:

#### **Births**

Ethelbert Sexton Franklin and Delilah Hudgens were married in 1827. Children born to them were:

Nancy Wood Franklin born 1829 Elizabeth Ann Franklin born 1830 Ethelbert Sexton Franklin, Jr. born 1832 John Cabeen Franklin born 1835 Jacob Stacy Franklin born 1837 Winifred Wood Franklin born 1839 Sarah Jane Franklin born 1842 Ellen Euphemia Franklin born 1844

FFRU Vol 17 - Page 20 (2nd Edition)

Frances Emily Franklin born 1847

#### **Deaths**

Nancy Wood Franklin 1839
Jacob Stacy Franklin 1850
Ethelberl Sexton Franklin, Jr. 1851
Delilah Hudgens Franklin 1850
John Cabeen Franklin 1867

Ethelbert Sexton Franklin, Sr. 1873 (Grand Pa Franklin)

Grand Ma Caroline Claty, second wife, 1880

Sarah Elmira Lephiew's brother, James Elbert Lephiew, told me in 1923 that his great-grandfather was named Thomas and his first wife, Winifred Wood, and that he married a second time, but he did not know this wife's name. He gave the children of Thomas (he didn't know the middle name) Franklin and Winifred Wood as: Thomas, Ethelbert Sexton, Jefferson, Winifred Alfred S. By the second marriage: John Washington, Isaac, Benjamin and a daughter, whose name he did not know. There was an Ann Franklin who married Richard Miller in Union Co., Arkansas on 3 Jan 1839. She could have been a late child of a second marriage.

Children of Alfred Stacy Franklin, son of Thomas Baker Franklin:

Alfred S. Franklin, born April 8, 1802 in SC married Anatolia Jane Levillain in 1824. She was born in LA. He died Nov 9, 1855. She was born Oct 1, 1809, died Oct 29, 1843. Their children were:

Ann Franklin, born Sept 22, 1826. Died July 16, 1840

Thomas Baxter Franklin, born Dec 18, 1828. (Is it possible this was Baker instead of Baxter, and was misread by the person copying it first from the Bible?)

Mary Elizabeth Franklin born July 1, 1830 married Dr. J. W. Martin Feb 9, 1848. Died Nov 21, 1919.

Alfred Franklin, Born Nov 9, 1832. Married Harriet Davis.

John Edwin Franklin, born Jan 9, 1835; died July 9, 1858.

William Wood Franklin, born Feb 25, 1837. Confederate soldier; killed in battle July 1, 1864.

Oliver L. Franklin, born April 27, 1839. Confederate soldier killed in battle during war.

Elmira Catherin Franklin, born Nov. 5, 1841. Married James J Meek.

Alfred S. Franklin married second - Rebecca Jane Martin, in 1844. She was born in Alabama Dec. 15, 1826. Their children were:

Emily Franklin, born July 25, 1846 - died Oct 30, 1846

Amelia J. Franklin, born Dec 8, 1847, m. in 1876 to J. Griffin. Died Feb 18, 1939.

Susan M. Franklin, born Jan 15, 1850, died July 11, 1852.

George M. Franklin, born Dec. 12, 1851; died June 22, 1852.

Julia E. Franklin, born May 30, 1853. Married a Mr. Adams.

Winifred Wood Franklin who married Dr. John T. Cabeen. She was the daughter of Thomas Baker Franklin and his wife, either Winifred Ann, Ann Winifred or presumably only Ann, as one cannot disprove the records. She is buried in Franklin family graveyard, 2 112 miles from War-

FFRU Vol 17 - Page 21 (2nd Edition)

ren, Arkansas.

Her gravestone as copied on Aug. 10, 1941, reads as follows:

Winefred W. Cabeen

Feb. 8 1853 - age 65

This would make the date of her birth either 1787 or 1788, depending on whether she was 65 or in her 65th year and also what time of the year her birth occurred.

The census of 1850, Bradley Co., Arkansas, gives the following:

John T. Cabeen, 60 farmer, born in SC,- wife, Winifred, 58, born in SC. Living in household were Samuel Meek, 23, born in Ala., Mira E. Meek, 23, born in Ark.; Ellen Franklin, 21, born in Ark.; Sarah Franklin, 26 born in Arkansas. (I believe Ellen and

The above census would seem to make her born in 1792 in SC and she could have been older than her husband and did not want either her husband or the enumerator to know her age.

I believe it is best to take the record as it is. That Thomas Baker Franklin's wife (his first wife) was Ann \_\_\_\_\_. That she was the mother of Winifred Wood Franklin, Alfred Stacy Franklin, Etherbert Sexton Franklin, Thomas and possibly others. Thomas Baker Franklin married a second time and had several children. It is certain that Ann was wife when Alfred Stacy Franklin and Etherbert Sexton Franklin were born - 1802 and 1805 respectively. I am positive that Ann, whether she was also named Winifred or not, was a Wood. It will be best not to bring up the Winifred as a second name as it only puts an air of doubt on the findings.

Thomas Franklin married Priscilla (Rogers?) Children were:

John Franklin married Mourning Carter

Thomas Baker Franklin married Ann (?)

Frances Franklin married first William Trussell, Jr. married second Major Grisham married third a Mr. Knight

Mary Franklin unmarried on Dec 27, 1809

Elizabeth Franklin unmarried on Dec 27, 1809.

It appears either that Ann also was named Winifred, or that the children of Elizabeth Ann Franklin Lephiew were mistaken and that Ann's mother was possibly named Winifred Wood,- that they confused Thomas Baker Franklin and Ann's daughter Winifred Wood Franklin and assumed she was in turn named for her mother, or it came down to them confused in some fashion.

Children of William James Lephiew and Elizabeth Ann Franklin: (Elizabeth Ann Franklin was eldest child of Etherbert Sexton Franklin and Delilah Hudgens).

James Elbert Lephiew (Ethebert has been shortened)

Mary Ellen Lephiew

Fannie Cabeen Lephiew

Charles Hudson Lephiew

Sarah Elmira Lephiew

Martha Elizabeth Lephiew

Louisiana Belle Lephiew

You will note that there were two Winifred Woods in descendants. Also one son of Thomas

Baker Franklin had a Nancy Wood and another had a William Wood. One had an Elizabeth Ann Franklin and a Frances Emily Franklin; the other had an Ann Franklin, a Thomas Baxter (or Baker) Franklin, and a John Edwin Franklin., he also had a Mary Elizabeth Franklin.

The Bradley County settlement was mainly a settlement of former residents of Chester County, SC. The gravestone in Franklin family burying ground near Warren, Arkansas, has a grave of Thomas Baker Franklin and he is shown as aged 64 years. His estate was admitted to probate in late summer, 1829, which would make him born in 1765. There were only two Thomas Baker Franklin's in SC in 1790; the other man was single according to deeds, therefore, the son of Thomas Franklin and Priscilla is bound to be, positively, in my opinion the man who died in Bradley Co., Ark. The only uncertainty is the Winifred Wood as his wife. Now we know from records that she was named Ann and from the deed from William and Sarah Wood the probability is she was their daughter. The Winifred Wood being the wife of Thomas Baker Franklin confuses the matter, but is should not. Like Woodrow Wilson she had two Christian names and used only one, or she was Ann (Wood?) and named her child Winifred Wood Franklin, possibly for her mother. In this case the descendants of Elizabeth Ann Franklin got the name of her daughter, Winifred Wood Franklin married Cabeen confused with Ann's name. I think records should govern you: Ann was her name and then there is no uncertainty as far as I see it.

### R. W. Lewis and Millie (Stone) Franklin

(Taken from FFRU Computer database. (Also see FFRU Vol 2 pg 40). Researching this family are: Cheryl Hammond, 12231 Hillcrest, Maryland Heights, MO 63043, Phone (314) 291-5907, Bonnie Sutton Hayes, 8979 Campbell Rd., Elk Grove, CA 95624 (1992); Mrs. N B Hedges, 101 Falkirk St., Port Wentworth, GA; Christopher Parke, Star Route, Box 22, Edmonton, KY 42129 (1985); Freeda Franklin Allgood, 57 1112 No. 1st W, Salt Lake City, UT.; James W. Franklin, 626 So. Alvarado St. #201, Los Angeles, CA 90057 (1979).

R W Lewis Franklin was born 1755 in Norfolk, VA, and married 21 Mar 1878 Henry Co., VA to Millie Stone (b 1767 Henry Co., VA). R W Lewis Franklin died 20 Mar 1842. Age at death 87 years (est).

"Kentucky Genealogy and Biography", Vol 11 states: "Lewis Franklin, who was born at Norfolk, Virginia, about 1755, and who was a soldier of the Revolutionary war under Gates, Greene and others, and was present at the surrender of Cornwallis at Yorktown. He was of English descent."

#### R.W. Lewis & Millie (Stone) Franklin's Children:

- 1. Stephen Franklin, son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1787 in Henry Co, VA, and married 11 Jun 1810 in Henry Co, VA, Nancy Clark, daughter of Henry and Nancy F () Clark, who was born 1772 in Henry Co, VA. Stephen died 1 May 1880 in Metcalfe Co, VA. Nancy died 20 Nov 1857 in Barren Co, KY.
  - 1. Elizabeth Ann Franklin, daughter of Stephen and Nancy (Clark) Franklin, was born 11 Apr 1811 in Henry Co, VA, and married 13 Dec 1831, James Harvey Sutton. Elizabeth Ann died 4 Sep 1895 in Pike Co, IL and was buried in Mason Cemetery, Pike Co, IL. James H Sutton was killed by Indians. Elizabeth moved back to KY then went to IL. Elizabeth Ann Franklin Sutton married #2 Joseph S Davis.

- James C Franklin, son of Stephen and Nancy (Clark) Franklin, was born 1816 in KY, and married in Cumberland Co, KY, Rebecca Jane Whitlow, daughter of Solomon and Janet (Dick) Whitlow, who was born 1824 in Cumberland Co, KY. James C died 2 Nov 1891 in Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried in Lou Franklin C, Metcalfe Co, KY. Rebecca Jane died after 1891. Children:
  - A. Lewis (Lou) Franklin, son of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 4 Jul 1843 in KY, and married 6 Nov 1892 in Metcalfe Co, KY, Letha E Harvey. Lewis (Lou) died 4 Feb 1935 in Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried in Lou Franklin C, Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - B. Nancy Jane Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 10 Nov 1835 and married 3 May 1866 in Metcalfe Co, KY, Joseph Newton Parke. Nancy Jane died 2 Jan 1898 in Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried in Parke Cemetery, Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - C. Stephen Franklin, son of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1847 in Barren Co, KY. Stephen died Dec 1861 in Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - D. Thomas Franklin, son of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1848 in Barren Co, KY. Thomas died 17 Dec 1861 in Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - E. Elizabeth Ann Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1850 in Barren Co, KY. Elizabeth Ann died 1896.
  - F. Milly F Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1853.
  - G. Susan C Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1855. Susan C died 14 Dec 1861 in Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - H. Lucy E Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1857. Lucy E died Nov 1861 in Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - 1. Martha F Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1860.
  - J. Mary G Franklin, daughter of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 4 Apr 1861 in Metcalfe Co, KY.
  - K. James A Franklin, son of James C and Rebecca Jane (Whitlow) Franklin, was born 1866.
- 3. Lewis Green Franklin, son of Stephen and Nancy (Clark) Franklin, was born 3 Nov 1818 in White Co, KY, and married 16 Dec 1842 in Barren Co, KY, Isabell Harvey who was born 11 Dec 1821. Lewis Green died 6 Dec 1891 in Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried in Nunn Cemetery, Metcalfe Co, KY. Isabell died 10 Mar 1882 in Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried in Nunn Cemetery, Metcalfe Co, KY. Children:
  - A. Marion Christopher Franklin, son of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 18 Sep 1843 in Barren Co, KY, and married 23 Jan 1868 in Metcalfe Co, KY, Matilda Jane Martin who was born 18 May 1846 in Louisville, KY. Marion Christopher died May 1899 in Thompson, AR. Matilda Jane died 2 Mar 1910 in Round Mound, AR and was buried 4 Mar 1910 in Pennicele, AR. Children:
    - Eluid Christopher Franklin, son of Marion Christopher and Matilda
       FFRU Vol 17 Page 24 (2nd Edition)

- Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born about 1866 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY.
- (2). Eleanor Franklin, daughter of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born about 1868 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married Frank McCulley. Eleanor died 4 Oct 1945.
- (3). Jesse Alonzo Franklin, son of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born 1 Apr 1871 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 11 Apr 1897, Mary Olive Hoffman. Jesse Alonzo died 11 Nov 1956.
- (4). Louis Virgil Franklin, son of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born I Apr 1870 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married Virginia Stoutland. Louis Virgil died 7 Aug 1934.
- (5). Talmon D Franklin, son of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born 24 Feb 1873 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 25 Oct 1897, Norah Alice Hoffman. Talmon D died 15 Dec 1949.
- (6). Courdelia Florence Franklin, daughter of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born 21 Oct 1875 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 7 Jul 1894, James Trot Vann. Courdelia Florence died 21 May 1953.
- (7). Laura Jane Franklin, daughter of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born 1877 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married Will Washam. Laura Jane died 10 Dec 1938.
- (8). Willie Ann Franklin, daughter of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born about 1879 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married Mart Wood.
- (9). Charley Franklin, son of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born about 1881 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe (Co, KY, and married Susie Couch. Charley died 23 May 1923.
- (10). Idah Franklin, daughter of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born about 1883 in Summer Shade, Metcalf Co, KY, and married Live Overmaan.
- (11). Roxie E Franklin, daughter of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born 24 Jan 1884 and married Robert Edward Salsbury.
- (12). Oscar G Franklin, son of Marion Christopher and Matilda Jane (Martin) Franklin, was born about 1887 in Stoutland, Howard Co, MO, Oscar G died 31 Jul 1889.
- B. Mary Ann Franklin, daughter of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 13 Aug 1844 and married Samuel Garmon.
- C. Austin Wilson Franklin, son of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 22 Nov 1845 in Beaumont, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 27 Mar 1868 in Metcalfe Co, KY, Colina Leroy Norris, daughter of John and Ann (Pedigo) Norris, who was born 11 Feb 1849 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY. Austin Wilson died 15 May 1911 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY and was

buried 16 May 1911 in Missionary Mound, KY. Colina Leroy died 29 Apr 1938 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY and was buried 30 Apr 1938 in Missionary Mound, KY. Children:

- (1) James Elmore Franklin, son of Austin Wilson and Colina Leroy (Norris) Franklin, was born 12 Mar 1870 in Beaumont, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 9 Jun 1892, Ida Ann Pedigo, daughter of Calvin and Ida () Pedigo, who was born 18 Sep 1876 in Beaumont, Metcalfe Co, KY. James Elmore died 18 Aug 1959 in Glasgow, KY and was buried 19 Aug 1959. Ida Ann died 7 May 1943 and was buried 8 May 1943.
  - a. Virgie Alice Franklin, daughter of James Elmore and Ida Ann (Pedigo) Franklin, was born 16 Feb 1895 in Richland,
     Camden Co, MO, and married 15 Nov 1916, Frank Otis Thompson. Virgie Alice died I Nov 1947.
  - b. Charlie Lewis Franklin, son of James Elmore and Ida Ann (Pedigo) Franklin, was born 21 Jul 1897 in Richland, Camden Co, MO, and married 2 Feb 1920 in Barren Co, KY, Clara Allie Culver, daughter of John A and Ellen (Cox) Culver, who was born 23 Oct 1898 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY. Children:
    - (a) Wilma LaVern Franklin, daughter of Charlie Lewis and Clara Allie (Culver) Franklin, was born 26 Jan 1921 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY, and married 22 Mar 1941, Clive Odell Emmertt. Wilma LaVern died 7 Jun 1942.
    - (b) Robert Lewis Franklin, son of Charlie Lewis and Clara Allie (Culver) Franklin, was born 21 Feb 1923 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY, and married 19 Mar 1946, Oma Lucille.
    - (c) Russell Edwin Franklin, son of Charlie Lewis and Clara Allie (Culver) Franklin, was born 26 Oct 1924 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY, and married 22 Jul 1949, Judy Pedigo.
    - (d) Louise Margaret Franklin, daughter of Charlie Lewis and Clara Allie (Culver) Franklin, was born 1 Nov 1926 in Farmer City, IL, and married 15 Jun 1946, Leroy Taylor.
    - (e) James Allen Franklin, son of Charlie Lewis and Clara Allie (Culver) Franklin, was born 16 Oct 1930 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY.
    - (f) Elton Wayne Franklin, son of Charlie Lewis and Clara Allie (Culver) Franklin, was born 25 Mar 1933 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY.
  - c. Oakley Dee Franklin, son of James Elmore and Ida Ann (Pedigo) Franklin, was born 25 Apr 1902 in Edmonton, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 1924 in Barren Co, KY, Hanie Belford Cox.

FFRU Vol 17 - Page 26 (2nd Edition)

- d. Ora Lee Franklin, son of James Elmore and Ida Ann (Pedigo)
   Franklin, was born 25 Apr 1902 in Edmonton, Metcalfe Co,
   KY
- (2) John Lewis Franklin, son of Austin Wilson and Colina Leroy (Norris) Franklin, was born 11 May 1872 in Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 29 Dec 1903 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, Roberta Irene Shaw who was born 16 Jul 1882 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY. John Lewis died 31 Oct 1945 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried 1 Nov 1945 in Missionary Mound. Roberta Irene died 5 Jul 1946 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY and was buried 6 Jul 1946 in Missionary Mound.

#### Children:

- a. Herbert Lee Franklin, son of John Lewis and Roberta Irene (Shaw) Franklin, was born 26 Oct 1904 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 2 Sep 1923, Grace Shaw. Herbert Lee died 21 May 1943.
- b. Clara Mae Franklin, daughter of John Lewis and Roberta Irene (Shaw) Franklin, was born 15 Aug 1906 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 23 Dec 1937, Franklin Abney.
- c. Bessie Bell Franklin, daughter of John Lewis and Roberta Irene (Shaw) Franklin, was born 22 Oct 1909 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 8 Dec 1938, George Harrison Shaw.
- d. Glen Elmore Franklin, son of John Lewis and Roberta Irene
   (Shaw) Franklin, was born 26 Mar 1908 in Good Luck,
   Metcalfe Co, KY. Glen Elmore died 25 Oct 1920.
- e. Elizie Bowman Franklin, son of John Lewis and Roberta Irene (Shaw) Franklin, was born 23 May 1912 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 10 Oct 1937. Gertie Frances McKinney.
- f. Gordon Bay Franklin, son of John Lewis and Roberta Irene (Shaw) Franklin, was born 10 Jul 1915 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 7 Jun 1945, Juanita Magaline Martin.
- g. Homer Dee Franklin, son of John Lewis and Roberta Irene (Shaw) Franklin, was born 27 Feb 1920 in Good Luck, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 31 Dec 1940, Dorothy Frances Shelley.
- (3) Cardellia Josephine Franklin, daughter of Austin Wilson and Colina Leroy (Norris) Franklin, was born 8 Jun 1877 in Beaumont, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married Samuel Pedigo.
- (4) Anna Bell Franklin, daughter of Austin Wilson and Colina Leroy (Norris) Franklin, was born 1 Mar 1888 in Beaumont, Metcalfe Co,

- KY, and married Clarence Shaw. Anna Bell died 24 Mar 1956.
- (5) Udore Maud Franklin, daughter of Austin Wilson and Colina Leroy (Norris) Franklin, was born 20 Oct 1890 in Beaumont, Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 26 Feb 1911, Bernie Harvey. Udore Maud died 26 Oct 1920.
- D. Nancy Jane Franklin, daughter of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 1 1 Sep 1847 in KY.
- E. James Henry Franklin, son of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 4 May 1849 in KY, and married 24 Apr 1873 in KY, Littie E Creacy.
- F. Lewis Almenion Franklin, son of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 8 Oct 1853 in Barren Co, KY, and married 14 Oct 1877, Minervia A Smith. Lewis Almenion died 23 Feb 1927.
- G. Lucy Clark Franklin, daughter of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 13 Aug 1857 and married \_\_\_\_\_\_ Smith.
- H. Josephine Thomas Franklin, daughter of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 17 Jan 1860 and married \_\_\_\_\_\_ Garmon.
- I. Ruthie Pharis Franklin, daughter of Lewis Green and Isabell (Harvey) Franklin, was born 8 Jan 1862 in Metcalfe Co, KY, and married 16 Dec 1879 in Metcalfe Co, KY. John William Creacy. Ruthie Pharis died 20 Mar 1919 in Overton Co, TN and was buried in Old Monroe Cem, Overton Co, TN.

Lewis Green Franklin also married 15 Nov 1883 in Metcalfe Co, KY, Polly Garmon.

- 4. Nancy Franklin, daughter of Stephen and Nancy (Clark) Franklin, was born 1838 in KY.
- II. Susannah Franklin, daughter of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1792 in Henry Co, VA, and married 8 Dec 1810, Benjamin Glass. Susannah died 1843/1850 in Glasgow, KY. Benjamin died 1852 in Glasgow, KY.
  - 1. James Glass, son of Benjamin and Susannah (Franklin) Glass, was born 1813. James said that the family came from Rich Hill, VA when he was 7 years old.
  - 2. Steve Glass, son of Benjamin and Susannah (Franklin) Glass, was born 1816 and married Lucinda Sartain. Steve died 1895. Lucinda died 1882.
- III. John Franklin, son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1794 in Henry Co, VA, and married 27 Sep 1814, Nancy Stone.
- IV. Mary "Polly" Franklin, daughter of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1800 in Henry Co, VA. Mary "Polly' died 1851.
- V. Jeremiah Franklin, son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 21 Mar 1801 in Henry Co, VA, and married 1825, Lucy Murphy, daughter of Clem Murphy, who was born 1798 in Patrick Co, VA. Jeremiah died Feb 1890. Lucy was also married to Rowland. Children:
  - 1. Milley Franklin, daughter of Jeremiah and Lucy (Murphy) Franklin, was born 1826 in Cumberland Co, KY, and married Wells.
  - 2. Lucretia Franklin, daughter of Jeremiah and Lucy (Murphy) Franklin, was born 1828 in Cumberland Co, KY, and married 21 Sep 1848 in Barren Co, KY, Robert Toomey.
  - 3. Virginia Franklin, daughter of Jeremiah and Lucy (Murphy) Franklin, was born 1830 in Cumberland Co, KY, and married William Spencer who was born 1825.

4. George Henry Franklin, son of Jeremiah and Lucy (Murphy) Franklin, was born 13 Dec 1832 in Cumberland Co. KY, and married 2 Mar 1854 in Barren Co, KY, Mary M Bailey, daughter of William T and Nancy (Spencer) Bailey, who was born 11 Feb 1837. George Henry died 19 Nov 1899. ("Historical and Biographical Sketches of Kentucky" P802: "George H. Franklin, b. 1832 Cumberland Co., KY. His father was Jeremiah, b. 1801 in Henry Co., VA., son of Lewis, b. about 1755, was in Revolution.")

#### Children:

- A. Corilla Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin, married Feggett.
- B. Lucy Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin, was born 6 Nov 1857 in Metcalfe Co, KY, and married Porter Fields Chaney who was born 19 Dec 1860 in Three Springs, Hart Co, KY. Lucy died 2 Feb 1927. Porter Fields died 19 Jul 1947.
- C. Nancy Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin, married Locke.
- D. Virginia Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin, married Nunn.
- E. William B Franklin, son of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin.
- F. George H Franklin, son of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin.
- G. Ann Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin.
- H. Cornelius David Franklin, son of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin, was born 25 May 1869 in Three Springs, Hart Co, KY, and married Elizabeth Greer. Cornelius David died 7 Jan 1957.
- I. Albert Franklin, son of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin, was born 28 Jun 1872 in Summer Shade, Metcalfe Co, KY. Albert died 1 Mar 1913.
- J. Mary B Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin.
- K. Milly Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Mary M (Bailey) Franklin. Mary & Milley were twins.

George Henry Franklin also married #2 1 Sep 1881, Susan N McFelea, daughter of Thomas and Zilpath (Deweese) McFelea, who was born 9 Mar 1848. Children:

- L. Zilpah Franklin, daughter of George Henry and Susan N (McFelea) Franklin.
- M. Clem Franklin, son of George Henry and Susan N (McFelea) Franklin.
- N. Louis Garnett Franklin, son of George Henry and Susan N (McFelea) Franklin, was born 19 Jan 1888 in Hardyville, Hart Co, KY. Louis Garnett died 27 Oct 1948.

Jeremiah also married 12 Mar 1860 in Metcalf Co, KY, Amanda Hutchens who was born 10 Mar 1830 in Cumberland Co, KY. Amanda died 19 Sep 1905 in Barren Co, KY. Amanda was also married to Ritter. Married in the home of Nancy Ritter. Children:

- 5. William D Franklin, son of Jeremiah and Amanda (Hutchens) Franklin, was born Sep 1861 in Metcalf Co, KY, and married Florence.
- 6. Tabitha Jane Franklin, daughter of Jeremiah and Amanda (Hutchens) Franklin, was

- born 25 May 1863 in Barren Co. KY, and married 27 Jan 1881 in Glasgow, Barren Co, KY, Walker Martain Spencer who was born 4 Jul 1861 in KY. Tabitha Jane died 16 Aug 1912 in Mirra, Barren Co, KY. Walker Martain died 22 Apr 1935 in Jacksonville, Morgan Co, IL.
- 7. Caroline Franklin, daughter of Jeremiah and Amanda (Hutchens) Franklin, was born 1865 and married James. Caroline died after 1890.
- 8. Lewis T Franklin, son of Jeremiah and Amanda (Hutchens) Franklin, was born 1868 and married Ida. Lewis T died after 1890.
- VI. Milly Franklin, daughter of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1802 in Henry Co, VA, and married 1857, Barton Pyrtle. Milly died 1885. "Henry County, Virginia, Deed Book #15, p2l26" Milly Franklin Barton Pyrtle Marriage Contract: (in part) "This indenture made and entered into this 24th March 1857 between Milly Franklin of the one part and Barton Pyrtle of the other part all of the County of Henry and State of Virginia. Witnesseth that whereas it is contemplated and intended that a marriage shall shortly be had and solemnized between Milly Franklin and the said Barton Pyrtle, and said Milly Franklin desiring to secure to herself the right to dispose of, will, or otherwise, certain property belonging to her hereinafter mentioned, further to guard against said property being subjected to the payment of the liabilities and debts of the said Barton Pyrtle, and the said Barton Pyrtle being willing to give the control and power of disposition of said property doeth by these presents agree to and with the said Milly Franklin in the following manner to with[sic]:
  - 1. Agree Barton Pyrtle shall have entire control and management of the interest of Milly Franklin in the landed estate left her by her father lying in the county of Henry on Smiths River and also the interest of said Milly in the negro woman Letty, another 6 children George, Jane, Mary, Patsey, Nancy, Elvira during the life of Milly Franklin and the negro woman Dolly and her child Julia and future increase during her lifetime.
- VII. Eusebius Franklin, son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1804 in Henry Co, VA, and married 2 Sep 1821 in Barren Co, KY, Felicia Franklin. Eusebius died in MO.
- VIII. Lewis Franklin, Jr., son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1807 in Henry Co, VA, and married 10 Oct 1841 in Barren Co, KY, Elizabeth Renick.
- IX. William Henry Franklin, son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1810 in Henry Co, VA, and married 1830, Martha E Hundley. William Henry died Jun 1901.
- X. George Walker Franklin, son of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1813 in Henry Co, VA, and married 24 Nov 1835, Jane Gossett who was born 4 Sep 1817. Jane died 1900.
- XI. Nancy Franklin, daughter of R W Lewis and Milley (Stone) Franklin, was born 1820 in Henry Co, VA, and married 1832, Daniel Kelly.

### **Queries**

Researching descendants of **James Franklin** born ca 1650 of early Dartmouth, Mass.; **John Franklin** (ca 1678-1738) and wife **Ruth Willson** of Rehoboth, Mass. Checking on **Nathan Franklin** (1798-1884) of early southeastern Ohio.

(Gerald Hodson, 962 Eva Lane, Upland, IN 46989)

I am searching for the mother, siblings, and children of **Lucinda Franklin** (b 8 July 1820 - d 12 Aug 1893 buried in Union Cemetery, Leesburg, Loudoun Co., VA) married **Jonathan Thomas Burch** son of **Fielden Burch**. Lucinda's father's name was **Benjamin Franklin**. She had a sister who married a **Hoskinson**.

(Janet Reynolds, 3 Chadwick, Wichita Fall, TX 76310-2208)

Would like to correspond with anyone who has information on **Viall** and **Sarah** (**Gusheter**) **Franklin**. They were in Cumberland, RI in a 1774 census, there were six children in the household under the age of sixteen years. The next record I have is from the 1800 U.S. Census, they were in Grafton Township, Windom County, Vermont, there were three children in the household and both parents were living at the time of the census. Did **Samuel Franklin** who lived in Williamstown, Orange County, VT marry while the family lived in Grafton Township and who was his wife.? (Edna Groetken, 1525 Court Street, Sious City, IA 51105-1524)

I am looking for the line of **William R. Franklin** b. 2 May 1838, Steuben Co., NY. He was the son of **Squire J.** and **Eunice (Cornell) Franklin** of Alexandria, MN. William's wife was **Euphemia Burdick** and they were married 1 Jan 1862, Wet Milton, Wis. (Linda Rae Lind, 10236 Yates Ln NW, Bremerton. WA 98312 (360) 830-4529).

My g grandfather as found in the 1900 Hickory Co., MO census. My father and other family members said my g-grandfather's name was **Henry Reeves** (**Rook**) **Franklin**, but in the Barren Co & Hickory Co Censuses his name is listed as **Henry M. Franklin** b Jan 1830 KY - age 70. Others listed: **Josephine A.** (**Bridges**) b Feb 1840 KY - age 60; **Thomas H.** b Sept 1874 KY - age 25; **Fred O.** b May 1879 KY - age 21; **Henry R.** b Nov 1882 MO - age 17 (my grandfather). My gg Grandfather as found in the 1850 Barren Co., KY Census: **Henry T. Franklin** b VA age 51; **Sally** 46 b KY; **William T.** 27 b KY; **Samuel B** 23 b KY; **Matilda** 21 b KY; **Henry M.** 19 b KY; Mar 16 b KY; **Anthony** 14 b KY; **Thomas** 12 b KY; **Schuyler** 10 b KY; **Rachel** 7 b KY; **Reuben** 5 b KY. Would like to correspond with others researching this line. (Patsey D. Brown, 1820 Dovetail Lane, Shingle Springs. CA 95682-9752)

Need information on **Joseph Franklin** b 17 Aug 1768 PA died 1833 Indiana married **Elizabeth Smith** b 6 Sept 1770 died 1833/1841. Their children: **James Smyth Franklin** (b 28 Dec 1787 PA died 25 May 1863 Tippecanoe Co.. IN) married **Sarah Rush** 31 Dec 1870 Ross Co., OH; **Preston Franklin** (b abt 1806 died after 1841) married **Hannah Foust** Oct 1827 Tippecanoe Co., IN; **Olive Franklin** (b 19 Nov 1796 died 7 July 1864 buried Jamestown Cemetery Greene Co., OH) married **George Shigley** 8 Oct 1811 Ross Co., OH; **Anna Nancy Franklin** (b 26 Dec 1792 PA died 2 Jan 1867) married **Thomas Lewis** 31 Mar 1814 Ross Co., OH; **Rebecca Franklin** (b abt 1803 Poss Chillicothe, Ross Co., OH died 24 Jan 1878 Champagne, IL) married **William Trenary** 2 Nov 1816 Lafayette, Tippecanoe Co., IN; **Jacob A. Franklin** (b abt 1806) married **Jane Glassford** 27 Feb 1834 Tippecanoe Co., IN.

(Roberta Jo "Bobbi" Hawk, MD, 6048 Chandler Drive, Baton Rouge, LA 70808 & Bev Petersen, 16305 Chandler Blvd., Mishawaka, Indiana 46544)

Warren Franklin was born about 1811 in Rhode Island. He was the son of Arnold Franklin & Rhoda (Colvin) Franklin who were both born in Rhode Island; lived & died in Abington, PA. Warren married Mary Ann Fiske. One of Warren's sons - Benjamin Doctor Franklin was born in Waverly, PA and fought in the Civil War; marched with General Sherman "to the sea". (Kay Franklin, 500 Everett St., Westwood, MA 02090)

## Correspondence

UPDATE on William Caddell, Jr., 6914 Mistletoe Drive, Dallas, TX 75223. His line was featured in Vol 16 pg 6. At that time he was 99% certain that his line extended from **Henry Franklin**. He now has documented proof. A sworn statement taken 2 Sept 1896 in Sevier County, Tennessee from **Aaron Whole/Whale** age 77 and **John Stinnett** age 65 swears that they are well acquainted with **William R. Franklin** and he is the son of **Henry Franklin** and a grandson of **Henry Franklin** who is said to be a half Cherokee Indian. The Application for Citizenship for William R. Franklin is also part of his documentation. What a find for William!

Name Ind	lex	James Dora	10	Colvin	
_ (00===0		John Monroe	10	Rhoda	32
		Juniata "Junie"	10	Cornell	21
No Surname		Marton C.	3	Eunice Couch	31
(Slave)		Mary Catherine Mary Messic	3 9	Susie	25
Dolly	30	Mildred	10	Cox	23
Elvira	30	Minnesota "Minnie"	9	Ellen	26
George	30	Morton Colfax	9	Hanie Belford	26
Jane	30	Oliver Roland	9	Creacy	20
Julia	30	Ollie Bessie	9	John William	28
Letty	30	Oscar William	10	Littie E	28
Mary	30	Robert Seymour	2, 9	Culver	
Nancy	30	Thomas V.	3	Clara Allie	26
Patsey	30	Thomas Vernon	9	John A	26
?		Virgil Henry	3		
Ann	22	Birdick		D	
Florence	29	Sally Lewis	19		
Ida	30	Brattle	1.7	Davis	22
James	30	Capt. Thomas	17	Joseph S	23
Keziah Priscilla	14 23	Bridges	21	Dean Charlotte	9
FIISCIIIa	23	Josephine A. Brinkworth	31	James	9
		Julia Ann	10	Deweese	,
$\mathbf{A}$		Bucksot	10	Zilpath	29
Abney		Julia A	9	Dick	2)
Franklin	27	Burch		Janet	24
Adams		Fielden	31	Dutton	
	21	Jonathan Thomas	31	Pearl	9
Annas		Burdick			
Agnes M	19	Euphemia	31	$\mathbf{E}$	
Aylesworth		Burrows			
David	16	Anna	18	Emmertt	26
				Clive Odell	26
В		C			
Bailey		Cabeen		F	
Mary M	28	John T.	22	Feggett	
William T	29	Winefred W.	22		29
Barnett		Winifred	22	Fiske	
Lutitia Rhonda	12	Carpenter		Mary Ann	32
Benham		Eleazer	14	Foust	
Jacob	9	Rachel	14	Hannah	32
Sarah	2, 9	Carter			
Bennet	10	Mourning	22	Franklin	
Nancy	19	Chaffee		Franklin	
Bennett	0	David	14	Abel	15, 17, 18
Charles Mary	9 3	Mary	14	Abel Jr.	13, 17, 18
Bird	3	Patience	14	Abigail	16
Charles Sherman	10	Chaney  Postor Fields	29	Absalom	11
Douglas Grant	10	Porter Fields Clark	29	Adolph Jackson	13
Edward Franklin	10	Henry	23	Albert	29
Elisha Henry	3, 9	Nancy F	23	Alexander	12
Elisha Hudson	2, 3, 9, 10	Claty	23	Alfred	20, 21
George William	10	Grand Ma Caroline	21	Alfred S.	21
Gustavus Adolphus	10	Cole		Alfred Stacy	21, 22
Henry E.	3		14	Amelia J.	21
Ira Walker	9	Mary	15	Ann	20, 21, 29
	EL	RU Vol 17 - Page 33 (	2nd Edition	1)	
	11	10 voi 17 - 1 age 33 (	ZIIG EGIHOI	1)	

Anna Bell	27	Georgenia Marian	13	Louise Margaret	26
Anna Nancy	32	Gideon	14	Lucinda	31
Anthony	31	Glen Elmore	27	Lucretia	28
Arnold	32	Gordon Bay	27	Lucy	29
Asa	14	Hannah	14, 15, 19	Lucy Clark	28
Asabel	15	Henry	12, 32	Lucy E	24
Austin Wilson	25	Henry M.	31	Lydia	14
Azubah	15	Henry R.	31	Marcy	19
	12, 20, 21, 31	Henry Reeves "rook"	31	Marh	15
Benjamin Doctor	32	Henry T.	31	Mariam	15
Bessie Bell	27	Herbert Lee	27	Marion Christopher	24
Caleb	19	Homer Dee	27	Martha	12, 16
Cardellia Josephine		Ichabod	14, 15	Martha F	24
Caroline	30	Ida Helen May	13	Martin	16
Charles	13	Idah	25	Mary	15, 20, 22
Charley	25	Ike	20	Mary "Polly"	28
Charlie Lewis	26	Isaac	21	Mary Ann	25
Chloe	15	J. C.	20	Mary B	29
Claibourn	16	Jackson	12	Mary Catherine	9, 10
Clara Mae	27	Jackson W "John"	12	Mary Elizabeth	21
Clem	29	Jacob A.	32	Mary Ellen	13
Corilla	29	Jacob Stacy	20, 21	Mary G	24
Cornelius David	29		5, 16, 17, 31	Mary Harrington	12
Courdelia Florence	25	James A	24	Mary Messic	2, 10
Daniel	14, 15	James Allen	26	Matilda	31
David	14, 15	James C	23	Miles	16
Delilah Hudgens	21	James Edward	9	Milley	28
Easter	15	James Elmore	26	Milly	29, 30
Ebeneser	15	James Henry	28	Milly F	24
Edward T	9	James Jr.	14	Molly	14, 15
Eleanor	25	James M.	11	Murbah	15
Elisha	15	James Smyth	32	Nancy	28, 29, 30
Elizabeth	22	James Sr.	14	Nancy Jane	24, 28
Elizabeth Ann	20, 22, 23, 24	Jefferson	21	Nancy Wood	20, 21
Elizie Bowman	27	Jeremiah	28	Nathan	15, 31
Ellen	22	Jesse	16	Noah	15
Ellen Euphemia	20	Jesse Alonzo	25	Oakley Dee	26
Elmira Catherin	21	John 11, 14, 15	5, 16, 17, 19,	Octavia	12
Elton Wayne	26		22, 28, 31	Olive	32
Eluid Christopher	24	John Cabeen	20, 21	Oliver	14
Emily	21	John Edwin	21, 23	Oliver L.	21
Esther	12, 14	John Jr.	11	Ora Lee	26
Ethelberl Sexton Jr.	. 21	John Lewis	27	Oscar G	25
Ethelbert Sexton	20, 21	John Sr.	11	Pemelia	12
Ethelbert Sexton Jr.	20	John W	12	Penelope	19
Etherbert Sexton	22	John Washington	21	Peter	16, 20
Eunice	15	Joseph	11, 32	Phillip	14
Eusebius	30	Josephine Thomas	28	Phoebe	15, 19
Felicia	30	Julia E.	21	Preston	32
Frances	20, 22	Keziah	15	R W Lewis	23
Frances Emily	20	Laura Jane	25	Rachel	14, 15, 31
Fred O.	31	Letitia Rhoda	12	Rebecca	32
Frederick	19	Lewis (lou)	24	Reuben	31
Frederick Hyde	12	Lewis Almenion	28	Robert	16, 20
George	11, 19	Lewis Green	24	Robert Fulton	12
George H	29	Lewis Jr.	30	Robert Lewis	26
George Henry	28, 29	Lewis T	30	Roxie E	25
George M.	21	Louis Garnett	29	Ruben	11
George Walker	30	Louis Virgil	25	Russell Edwin	26
					= 3

Ruth	17	NI - 41	10	II11	
Ruthie Pharis	17 28	Nathan	18	Howland John	1.5
				Samuel	15 15
Sabra	15 31	G			13
Sally				Hudgens	20, 22
Samuel	15, 31	Gallagher Nadine	10	Delilah	20, 22
Samuel B	31		10	Hundley	20
	16, 19, 20, 22	Garmon	20	Martha E	30
Sarah Jane	20	D. 11	28		
Schuyler	31	Polly	28	K	
Simeon	15	Samuel	25		
Squire	15	Garnett		Kelly	• •
Squire J.	31	Louis	29	Daniel	30
	14, 17, 23, 24	Gassling		Kendall	
Stephen Jr.	19	Ernest	12	Lou Ella	10
Susan	15	Glass		Susan	9
Susan Braley	17	Benjamin	28	Knight	
Susan C	24	James	28		22
Susan M.	21	Steve	28		
Susan Srene	13	Glassford		L	
Susannah	28	Jane	32		
Tabitha Jane	29	Gossett		Lee	
Talmon D	25	Jane	30		16
Thankful	15	Greer		Lephiew	
Thomas	2, 18, 20, 21,	Elizabeth	29	Charles Hudson	22
	22, 24, 31	Griffin		Fannie Cabeen	22
Thomas A	, , <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	J.	21	James Elbert	21, 22
Thomas Baker	22, 23	Grisham		Louisiana Belle	22
Thomas Baxter	21	Major	22	Martha Elizabeth	22
Thomas H.	31	Gusheter		Mary Ellen	22
Udore Maud	27	Sarah	31	Sarah Elmira	21, 22
Uriah	16			William James	22
Viall	31	TT		Levillain	
Virgie Alice	26	H		Anatolia Jane	21
Virginia	28, 29	Hammond		Lewis	
Warren	32	Esther	15	Abel Franklin	19
Washington	20	Hands		Abel Frankling	18
William	11, 16, 20		16	Anna	18
William B	29	Harvey		David	18
William D	29	Bernie	28	Esther	19
William Henry	30	Isabell	24	John	18
William R.	31, 32	Letha E	24	Mary	18
William T.	31, 32	Hayes		Polly	18
William Thomas	9	Geraldine	13	Sally	18
William W.	11	Heim	10	Thomas	32
William Wood	21	Paul L.	10	Littlefield	32
Willie Ann	25	Hill	10	Caleb	19
		Minnie B.	3	Lydia	19
Wilma Lavern	26	Turner	9	Locke	1)
Winifred Alfred S.	21	Hoffman	,	Locke	29
Winifred Wood	20, 23	Mary Olive	25	Lucille	29
Wm.	3	Norah Alice	25	Oma	26
Zachariah	16	Holsclaw	23	Luther	20
Zepheniah	11		10	Caleb	1.5
Zilpah	29	Mabel	10		15
Frankling		Horton	1.4	Hannah	15
Abel	18	Easter	14		
Anna L	18	Hester	14	M	
Elisabeth Rathburn	18	Rachel	14		
Maynard	18	Hoskinson	21	Mahon	2
Nancy	18		31	Henryette Altonia Bird	3
	171	TDII V 1 17 D	25 (2 1 1 1 1 )	`	

Martin		P		Lucinda	28
Dr. J. W.	21			Shaw	
Juanita Magaline	27	Parke		Clarence	27
Matilda Jane	24	Joseph Newton	24	George Harrison	27
Rebecca Jane	21	Pedigo		Grace	27
McCulley	21	Ann	25	Roberta Irene	27
<u> </u>	25	Calvin	26		21
Frank	25	Ida	26	Shelley	27
McFelea		Ida Ann	26	Dorothy Frances	27
Susan N	29	Judy	26	Shigley	
Thomas	29	Samuel	27	George	32
McKinney			21	Smith	
Gertie Frances	27	Potter			28
Meek		Agnes Lura	19	Elizabeth	32
Emma	10	Aloren D	19	Minervia A	28
James J	21	Arthur E	19	Spencer	20
		Burtie	19		20
Mira E.	22	Charles E	19	Nancy	29
Samuel	22	Cyrus E	19	Walker Martain	29
Miller		Cyrus Q	19	William	28
George Edward	13			Stanley	
Harold E	13	Eddison E	19	Charles B	12
Richard	21	Edson E	19	Vivian	12
Mitchell		Ellswoth S	19	Stephen Franklin	
Capt. Thomas Jr.	17, 19	Loren D	19	Stephen Trankini	18
Elizabeth		Luther A	19	C4:	10
	19	Melvin	19	Stinnett	22
Margaret	17, 18	Pyrtle	-	John	32
Moseley		Barton	30	Stone	
Capt. Samuel	17	Barton	30	Millie	23
Mosser				Nancy	28
Ida	10	R		Stoutland	
Olive	10			Virginia	25
Murphy		Ramy		Sutton	
Clem	28	Margaret	9	James H	23
	13	Rand		James 11	23
Joseph		Margie Ellen	10		
Lucy	28	Remington		T	
		Penelope	17	_	
N		Sarah	17	Taylor	
14		Stephen	17	Leroy	26
Norris			1 /	William	15
Colina Leroy	25	Renick	20	Thomas	
John	25	Elizabeth	30	Minnie Ann	3
Nunn	_	Ridgway		Thompson	
1,01111	29	Wilfred T	10	Frank Otis	26
	2)	Ritter		Minnie Ann	9
			29		9
0		Nancy	29	Toomey	20
		Rogers?		Robert	28
O'Hare		Priscilla	22	Trenary	
Henry	12	Ross	22	William	32
O'Haver			1.4	Trussell	
Sarah Elizabeth	12	Abigail	14	William Jr.	22
Ormsby		Rowland		Tunell	
John	14		14, 28	Charlotte	12
Martha	14	Rush		Turner	12
Overmaan	17	Sarah	32		1.4
	25			Rev. David	14
Live	25	a			
Owens		$\mathbf{S}$		$\mathbf{V}$	
Pamelia A	12	Salsbury		•	
		Robert Edward	25	Vann	
			23	James Trot	25
		Sartain			

			20		
$\mathbf{W}$		Jacksonville	30	Plymouth County	1.5
Walker		Pike County	23	Scituate	15
Ira	3	Indiana	10	Minnesota	31
Warfield	Ü	Jefferson County	10	Alexandria Missouri	31
Elizabeth	14	Madison	10		26
Washam	1.	Marion County	0	Camden County Richland	26
Will	25	Indianapolis	9		
Wells	23	Tippecanoe County	32	Hickory County	31
Wells	28	Lafayette	32	Howard County	25
Westcott	20			Stoutland	25
Ann	15	K		Kirkwood	12
Whale	13			Oak Hill Cemetery St Louis	12
	22	Kentucky	1.1	St Louis	12
Aaron	32	Anderson County	11		
Whaley	10	Barren County	11, 24, 31	N	
Sarah	10	Cave City	9	New Hampshire	
Whitlow	2.4	Glasgow	26, 29	Cheshire County	
Solomon	24	Mirra	30	Winchester	14
Whitman	. ~	Bracken County	11	New York	17
Molly	15	Campbell County	9	Steuben County	31
Whole		Christian County	11	Steuben County	31
Aaron	32	Clark County	11		
Wiber		Covington	9	$\mathbf{O}$	
David Ralph	13	Cumberland County	11, 23, 29	Ohio	
Willson		Fayette County	11	Greene County	
Ruth	31	Fleming County	11	Jamestown Cemetery	32
Wood		Gallatin County	2, 3, 9	Ross County	
Mart	25	Harrison County	11	Chillicothe	32
Winifred 2	21, 23	Hart County			
		Hardyville	29	n	
		Kenton County		P	
Place Index		Covington	10	<b>r</b> Pennsylvania	
Place Index		Covington Mason County	11		32
Place Index		Covington	11 24	Pennsylvania	32 10
		Covington Mason County	11 24 25, 27, 28	Pennsylvania Abington	
A		Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton	11 24 25, 27, 28 26	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County	10
<b>A</b> Arkansas		Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly	10
A Arkansas Bradley County	20	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade	11 24 25, 27, 28 26	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County	10
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele	24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly	10 32
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound	24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland	10 32 31
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson	24 24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown	10 32
A  Arkansas  Bradley County  Pennicele  Round Mound	24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland	10 32 31 17, 19 18
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson	24 24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown	10 32 31 17, 19
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren	24 24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham	10 32 31 17, 19 18
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren	24 24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate	10 32 31 17, 19 18
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California	24 24 24 23	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate	10 32 31 17, 19 18
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren	24 24 24	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California	24 24 24 23	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate	10 32 31 17, 19 18
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach	24 24 24 23	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach	24 24 24 23	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida	24 24 24 23	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida Dade County	24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida	24 24 24 23	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A  Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C  California Long Beach  F  Florida Dade County Woodlawn Park Cemetery	24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County  L Louisiana Farmerville  M Massachusetts Braintree	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County Old Monroe Cemetery	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida Dade County	24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County  L Louisiana Farmerville  M Massachusetts Braintree Bristol County	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County Old Monroe Cemetery Sevier County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17 23
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida Dade County Woodlawn Park Cemetery	24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County  L Louisiana Farmerville  M Massachusetts Braintree Bristol County Attleboro	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County Old Monroe Cemetery Sevier County Wilson County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17 23
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida Dade County Woodlawn Park Cemetery  I Illinois	24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County  L Louisiana Farmerville  M Massachusetts Braintree Bristol County Attleboro Dartmouth	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County Old Monroe Cemetery Sevier County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17 23
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida Dade County Woodlawn Park Cemetery  I Illinois Champagne	24 24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County  L Louisiana Farmerville  M Massachusetts Braintree Bristol County Attleboro Dartmouth Rehoboth	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11 9 11 20	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County Old Monroe Cemetery Sevier County Wilson County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17 23
A Arkansas Bradley County Pennicele Round Mound Thompson Warren  C California Long Beach  F Florida Dade County Woodlawn Park Cemetery  I Illinois	24 24 24 23 10	Covington Mason County Metcalfe County Beaumont Edmonton Good Luck Summer Shade Pendleton County Falmouth Shelby County Trimble County Milton Warren County  L Louisiana Farmerville  M Massachusetts Braintree Bristol County Attleboro Dartmouth	11 24 25, 27, 28 26 25, 27 25 9 11 9 11	Pennsylvania Abington Allegheny County Waverly  R Rhode Island Cumberland Jamestown New Shoreham Scituate  S South Carolina Chester County  T Tennessee Overton County Old Monroe Cemetery Sevier County Wilson County	10 32 31 17, 19 18 17 23

V	
Vermont	
Orange County	
Williamstown	31
Windham County	
Townsend	14
Windom County	
Grafton Township	31
Virgiania	
Henry County	30
Virginia	
Bedford County	12
Henry County	23, 28
Loudoun County	
Leesburg	
Union Cemetery	31
Lynchburg	12
Patrick County	28
Rich Hill	28
$\mathbf{W}$	
Wisconsin	
Wet Milton	31